


HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Minutes

March 28, 2013

MEMBERS PRESENT: Alderman Jan Michalski,  Don Jensen, Merike Phillips and 
Tom Schleif 

EXCUSED: Sue O'Day

STAFF PRESENT: Mike Maki

Other present included:  Alderman Chris Schwartz

The meeting was called to order at 5:03 p.m. by Mr. Jensen and roll was taken.

A motion was made by Alderman Michalski and seconded by Mr. Schleif to approve the 
minutes of the February 28, 2013 meeting.  The motion passed.    (Ayes 4; Noes 0)

1. Proposed Historical Artifact Listing - Abraham Lincoln Statue at 711 59th 
Place.  (District #2)

Public hearing opened, no comments, public hearing closed.

Alderman Michalski said these are items that were previously discussed and we don't 
anticipate any opposition to adding them to the listing.

A motion was made by Alderman Michalski and seconded by Ms. Phillips to recommend 
the Abraham Lincoln statue as a historical artifact. The motion passed. (Ayes 4; Noes 0)

Mr. Jensen added that it was Mr. Calkin's vision to have a statue located on each of the 
four corners in library park, but it never materialized.

2. Proposed Historical Artifact Listing - Kenosha County Soldiers Monument 
at 711 59th Place.  (District #2)

Public hearing opened, no comments, public hearing closed.

A motion was made by Alderman Michalski and seconded by Ms. Phillips to recommend 
the Soldiers Monument statue as a historical artifact.  The motion passed.  (Ayes 4; 
Noes 0)

3. Discussion on the Downtown Study Historic Building Analysis

Public hearing opened.

Alderman Chris Schwartz, representing District #2, was in attendance.

Public hearing closed.

Mike Maki, Community Development Specialist, has provided excerpts from the 
Kenosha Downtown Strategic Development Plan to aid in the discussion.

Historic Preservation                               March 28, 2013



The plan summarizes that activities over the years and a direction for the future. 
Kenosha Area Business Alliance (KABA) is currently advertising and will hire a 
Downtown Manager.  The plan also recommends to hire a new set of consultants to 
review the Downtown.  Any suggestions made by this Commission are advisory only per 
our Ordinance.   Since we are advisory only, we are unable to have a "Certified Local 
Government Program".  If we did, we could apply for grants to aid in hiring the 
consultants for studies.  Mr. Jensen asked wouldn't the funds be an incentive for the 
City to revise the Ordinance.  Mr. Maki said we could research that, but in the past were 
was resistance to making the Commission's findings mandatory rather than advisory.

Mr.  Schleif asked how many municipalities have a mandatory review as part of their 
Historic  Preservation Ordinance.  Mr. Maki said approximately 30, including Racine.  

Alderman Michalski asked if there are other grants available if Kenosha isn't under the 
Certified Local Government Program.  Mr. Maki said no.  When the City rehabbed the 
Lighthouse Keepers House, they used funding through WisDOT, Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Coastal Management.  

Alderman Michalski then asked if there was any funding available for facade 
renovations.  Mr. Maki said that funding was available through CDBG funds.  The City is 
looking into other ways to make funding available through the Main Street Program.  

Ms. Phillips said another option would be to make this a historical district, then each 
contributing building would be eligible.  The Commission researched this in the past, but 
there were so many gaps with demolished and vacant buildings that the designation 
was not appropriate.  People that are located within a historical district are not aware 
these funds are available.  Mr. Maki said the City has provided information in the past, 
but the property owner must be looking for the information to find it.  Mr. Maki said Staff 
will issue a Press Release during Historic Week in May.

Ms. Phillips made a recommendation to evaluate the buildings in the Downtown area as 
to their condition.  Mr. Maki said currently there are no funds for that.  The City is 
focused on applying for Main Street Program funds.  Also, the Downtown Manager 
position is open for application.  Mr. Maki said the Commission should forward this 
request to administration.

A motion was made by Ms. Phillips and seconded by Mr. Schleif to recommend to City 
Administration that they create a group to review the Downtown area to study and 
determine potential uses for Key Downtown Historic Buildings.

Mr. Schleif said a good facade program is really important for the Downtown.

Ms. Phillips (regarding Racine) and Mr. Schleif (regarding Wausau) spoke of the strong 
presence of a Historic Preservation Commission and how it could improve the area.

The motion passed.  (Ayes 4; Noes 0)

Public Comments

No public comments.

Commissioner Comments

Ms. Phillips said she was surprised by the removal of the Statue of Liberty for 
refurbishing.  Discussion was held on who was doing the restoration and details of how 

Historic Preservation                               March 28, 2013



the restoration should be done.  Mr. Maki said we were not consulted on the restoration, 
this went through the Parks Department.  Mr. Schleif asked if the new Historic Artifact 
Ordinance will help to protect these pieces and the manner restorations are done in the 
future.   Mr. Maki said yes, as long as we designate it as a historic artifact.

Mr. Jensen noted that the City and Commission was "darted" in the Kenosha News for 
the lack of visible progress on the Elk's Club building.  Is there an update?  What is the 
time frame?  Mr. Maki said there are lots of pieces to this project and there may not be 
any "visible" progress made this entire year.  There are some contractual items and two 
developers that are interested.  There will be a public announcement made later this 
summer.  Mr. Jensen said that would be good, because people want some answers.

Mr. Jensen asked about the plans for the Masonic Temple.  Mr. Maki it has been 
purchased by a private owner to house his art collection.

Ms. Phillips said she would like to start a program to recognize people that have made 
substantial improvements to their building, we should recognize the good job.  We 
should also recognize buildings 100 years old or older.    Mr. Jensen added that we 
should have a formal certificate and a ceremony.  Ms. Phillips said we previously did 
this at the Common Council.   Staff will list the recognition program on the next Historic 
Preservation Commission agenda for action.

Staff Comments

Mr. Maki noted the first Historical Artifact was at Common Council on March 18th and 
the two from tonight will be at the April 15th meeting.  The Eichelman Park Artillery piece 
will be on the April meeting agenda.

Mr. Maki also met with Diane Giles and an article regarding Historic Preservation will be 
published on April 7th.  The Public will also be able to suggest nominations.  Mr. Jensen 
asked if we should be nominating privately owned pieces.  Mr Maki suggested the 
Commission wait to nominate these pieces.  Ms. Phillips suggested we create a list of 
potential items.  Mr. Maki will list this as a discussion item for the next meeting.

A motion was made by Mr. Schleif and seconded by Alderman Michalski to adjourn the 
meeting.  The motion passed.  (Ayes 4; Noes 0)  The meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.

Certification that the minutes have been approved by the Historic Preservation Commission.

                                                                
Jeffrey B. Labahn, Director of Community Development & Inspections

Meeting Minutes Prepared by:  Kay Schueffner, Community Development & Inspections

Historic Preservation                               March 28, 2013












	Agenda
	Minutes - 3/28/13
	Item 1
	Item 2

